Fort Myers CGeneral Enpl oyees Pension
Boar d

Board Meeting Minutes
October 19, 2011
Fourth Floor Conference Room
2200 Second Street
Fort Myers, Florida

PRESENT: Cecile Mazzio, Chairperson; Leif LusNg¢ce-Chairperson; Donna
Lovejoy, Secretary; Barbara Carlson, Board Membrichard Griep, Board
Member; Thomas O’Malley, Board Member; Eloise Pagton, Board Member;
Debra Emerson, Pension Manager. Guests: AuraitgGra; Mike Seagle

ABSENT: None

The Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board iktg@tas called to order at
9:03 O’clock A.M.

Item | — Approval of Minutes|

Mr. Lustig motioned to approve the September 21112@neeting minutes,
seconded by Ms. Carlson, and unanimously approyeatéBoard.

Item Il — Plan Administrator Presentations

Mr. Griep stated that the Fire Plan recently retdifPension Resource Center as
its administrator. The Payroll Department has b&erking with the company to
transfer information and set up the systems thegeifbhired by the General
Board the transition should be smooth. He mett®adr while attending the fire
pension meetings and believes the General Plan beitlefit greatly if hired
because the firm is already familiar with the Cityiere would be more
cohesiveness.

Ms. Emerson stated that the Police Plan does na &a administrator. Denise
Egolf is the secretary and she does most of thet@apy administrative work.

Fiduciary Trust is the custodian. Ms. Lovejoy sthithat the Police Plan is
smaller than the General Plan. Mr. Griep stateat ttmany pension plans
administer their own. Mr. O'Malley stated that hay an outsourced

administrator will limit the availability for empiees to receive information in a
timely manner.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 1 of 16



Ms. Pennington stated that she is impressed withifée Kerr's background and
credentials. She has experience with differenesiand their problems; this
might be good for Fort Myers. Mr. Griep statedtthart Myers would be hiring
the firm too, not just her. Ms. Pennington stathdt she would bring her
experience to the firm. Mr. Griep responded, & skays. Ms. Pennington stated
she is disappointed that Pete Prior from Benef8AUs not present. Mr. Griep
stated that Jennifer Kerr attempted to start upolar firm and then returned to
Pension Solutions. She was there for approximaelymonths after Lakeland,
left to start her own business, and now she is.bat¢k Griep confirmed that Ms.
Kerr indicated she can attend monthly meetingsfoployee availability, similar
to ICMA. Ms. Mazzio stated that Ms. Kerr wouldeattt Board meetings and
hold special meetings for employees. She could atsne to new employee
orientations to personally speak with new hires.

Ms. Lovejoy stated that Benefits USA’'s fee is $880 per month. She
guestioned if Fort Myers has researched the fegeriso determine if they start
out low and increase after the first year; she had experience with this
occurring. Ms. Pennington stated that Pension ResdDenter charges $4,375.00
per month. Ms. Mazzio stated she believes theyrofiely six months of
meetings. Mr. Lustig confirmed that additional niegs are $350.00 above the
six per plan therefore attendance would be evengrotmonth. Mr. Griep stated
that Pension Resource Center will draft the meetiggndas and transcribe
minutes.

Mr. Griep confirmed that Pension Resource Cenfeesis $10,000 more per year
than Benefits USA. They have Cape Coral officeicwthas been provided by
the City of Cape Coral. Ms. Pennington questioifigde employees work five
days per week in the office. Mr. Griep agreed stptie believes they have two
employees. Ms. Lovejoy questioned if the pricdudes an employee in Fort
Myers. Mr. Griep responded that he believes theyld/not hire another person
for Fort Myers. Mr. O’Malley stated he is concettrebout the personal contact;
it all comes down to the cost.

Pension Resource Center Presentation ~ Scott Bandd_Runkle

Mr. Baur stated that the Board has the responsiliii administer the pension
plan solely based on the interest of the partidppaand beneficiaries while
defraying the normal reasonable costs. PensionRasdenter is employed by
and acts as an extension of the Board. Their job wgork for the trustees as well
as for all members/participants of the pension plan

Pension plan administration incorporates activifsthe Board with respect to
operation of the pension plan and service to thenbegs. The information side
includes maintenance of financials, data, and d=cosed to determine benefits
on behalf of the members. The people side staitts the members as those
administered by the Board of Trustees. Each compiogoes from a pension

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 2 of 16



plan level to a member level. On the plan levieg¢ people side includes the
Board and individual members. On the informatime sissues occur globally at
the plan level in terms of maintenance of data eswbrds on behalf of the
pension plan down to the level of the member wihergefits must be determined
and eventually paid. Fort Myers has a very matpemsion plan where
approximately two-thirds is retirees/beneficiaresl one-third active members.

Ms. Runkle stated that the administrator coordmdke daily operations of the

pension plan. Pension Benefit Resource works théhtrustees, advising and
educating through constant telephone and emailactnt They act as liaison

between the trustees and service providers indauigimoney managers, attorneys,
accountants, actuaries, and custodians. In addpersonal services are provided
to the pension plan participants including meetnign members to discuss timing

and options available in preparation for retirement

Pension Resource Center provides the followingisesuo trustees:

- Schedule all meetings and coordinate/prepare pubketing notices,
agenda, and meeting minutes.

- Review, organize, and file all money manager, nusniattorney, and
custodial statements/documents.

- Serve as the Public Records Liaison Manager maingjithe records and
beneficiary designations while providing accessptilic records and
responding to public records requests in complianith the Public
Records Act.

- Prepare correspondence, respond to informationestgurom trustees,
service providers, and the public.

- Schedule trustees for training sessions and/orecentes

- Provide workshops for members.

- Pay service provider invoices.

- Assist with coordinating presentations to the Boand prepare requests
for proposals.

- Prepare the annual application for fiduciary ligbiinsurance coverage
providing quotes in advance to trustees for revaew determination.

Mr. Baur stated that Pension Resource Center hasalility to shift the

operational responsibility from the City duringiemé¢ when budgets and staffing
are limited. Jennifer Kerr worked for him and d@egery good job. As a newly
established business owner her experience is tinatethe administration side.
She has brought in her father who is experiencegether they should be a
formidable combination however their abilities nagt be as strong on the back
office side. Pension Resource Center on the othed thas the capability to
maintain all of the information while assisting mwmens in determining their

benefits. They still believe in checks and balandberefore Foster & Foster
should review/certify pension benefit calculaticass part of the process before
payment is made to members. A lot of interactioriha front end should be

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 3 of 16



accessible and handled through their office.

The transition with the Fire Pension has gone nstwevly than he expected as
they are still in the process of gathering inforimatfrom the City. Pension
Resource Center is slightly more information inteeswhich will work to the
advantage of the members. Once all of the infaonaits obtained, it will be
accessible on the website, including the ability nake real-time benefit
calculations based on actual payroll earned ug th@t date. This is one of the
areas where Pension Benefit Resource is most clistid significant amount of
investment is placed in both their staff and systemmenhance services. Their
web-based systems, which were developed and wiittbiouse, can securely be
made accessible to the trustees and/or membensenfly members are allowed
to do real-time benefit calculations with a limitedbility to manipulate the
assumptions, which avoids the feasibility of unoeedble perception.

Pension plan administration is their only functiote staff is extremely
competent, including two attorneys. They are culyeassociated with an
accounting firm, which allows for the ability of B&#on Resource Center to take
over maintenance of the interim pension plan fimglac This function is included
in the proposal. The City will be able to realltecés internal resources as more
functions in the operation of the pension plantaken over.

Although their fee schedule is higher than the ofiteposals, Pension Resource
Center has the capability to exceed what is typidadndled only at the board or
pension plan level. Fort Myers has a fairly compleenefit structure.
Approximately two-thirds is weighted to retired meens and beneficiaries with
approximately 350 active members. The pension phmfudes a change in
multiplier from 2.1% to 3.0% in 1999 and an optibtype benefit plan structured
as a four-tier benefit and contribution system weh#ére optional fourth tier
involves a $200.00 medical supplement and 2.5% C@da#bined.

Pension Resource Center has administered all skth®@ough similar pension
plan designs, which have included partial refunmstibutions and members
withdrawing from optional tiers due to a lack ofngarehension or a change in
circumstances. Even if decisions are irrevocalblere have always been
allowances for the Board to consider in making ¢hkmds of determinations.
Fort Myers’ Pension Plan also offers a DROP progrmaansion Resource Center
could do the statements or Foster & Foster couittimoe doing the work. Fort
Myers has a seven member board including the umiesident, union appointee,
non-union appointee, two City trustees, and twetaes appointed by the others.

Having reviewed all of the components it is likéhat Fort Myers has an active
pension plan. It was not studied arbitrarily hoewelie wanted to be sure that his
price was not too far from the other typical feegwsals. Mr. Baur stated that he
would really like to work for Fort Myers. Pensi&esource Center has an office
in Cape Coral and works for Fort Myers’ Fire Pendidan and three Cape Coral

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 4 of 16



Plans. It makes sense in terms of the geograjinstec to be able to do it. He is
better equipped to offer local service to membarsiqularly based on proximity.
The trustees must now decide which administratdr lva the best fit for the
General Employees’ Pension Plan. As he strugglddtive fee schedule because
he knew this would be the most significant constlen, his justification for the
higher fee is that Pension Resource Center candarder the consolidation of
jobs currently being performed in a fragmented Wwatween Human Resources,
Finance, and the current administration. The opmratould be more centralized
into the plan administration rather than in theyCit

Mr. Baur stated he considered offering some commessn the two year
$4,375.00 fee proposal however he does not belevean go that far. He
considered whether and how far he could or shoowet the fee because if
lowered too far for what they do he will end up @ibéng the cost. If spread too
thin, it takes away from service and they would betas available to the Board
and members. It is important to be careful inisgta price that will allow for
efficient services leading to a long term relatldpswith the Board and pension
plan members.

He considered with a lot of thought the possiblyosfering the fee to $4,075.00
however the final result was not a substantialed#hce. The three year contract
would start at $4,075.00 for the first year withmedest 3% increase for the
subsequent two years, which would bring the preceapproximately the same
place as the two year guarantee on the origingbfeposal of $4,375.00. Within
that he did not consider nor did he feel that he to®@ much margin for error in
how he was looking at the pension plan overall.

Mr. Baur stated that he deviated substantially frbim typical presentation
because he thought it would be more useful to laaradative conversation about
what Pension Resource Center does and how and evayrived at the proposal.
He encouraged Board members to go onto the web$he. plan calculators are
not up yet for the Fire Pension however he beli¢gkatsthe transition time would
be less for the General Employees’ Plan.

All of the information they have on behalf of thiam belongs to the pension plan,
belongs to the Board. Pension Resource Centertidmscas administrator.
Should Fort Myers choose to do something diffenerthe future with its pension
plan administration essentially the Board would énall of the information it
needs to track members and determine/produce lbendfhe continuity is very
important because ultimately the trustees, memlzard, City staff change over
time. There is a lot of value added by having @émiaistrator.

Ms. Pennington questioned what types of activitpuoan the Cape Coral Office
and are employees able to walk in or make an appeim for assistance. Ms.
Runkle stated that the Cape Coral office is opely fl@m 9:30 a.m. to 2:30 p.m.
There are two employees in the office. Her holurstfiate as a result of traveling

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 5 of 16



to meetings however her coworker Bob is alwaysethdfle is good at running
numbers and meeting with people individually. Baur confirmed that initially
both he and Ms. Runkle will attend the monthly lobareetings and eventually
only one of them would attend. The two primarytests are he and Ms. Runkle.
The reason for having multiple people working wiitle Board is that it provides
for greater continuity; both of them would be awafeall activity.

The firm employs sixteen people. Eight are plamiadstrators, those who work
directly with the trustees and members. The o#maployees make pension
payments; a substantial volume of payments areepssal out of their office.

Fort Myers’ custodian currently makes its benefaéyments and he is not
necessarily stating that Pension Resource Centaridido this however their

firm does understand the process and everythingntails. The firm has a
dedicated payment staff, a couple of employees cdeslli strictly to plan

accounting. This generates considerable overheadthi® firm versus other

administrators. Finally, the staff includes a smalt highly robust I.T. team.

Substantial investment has been placed in techpadogl systems to the point
where they can market their systems instead of #&vices. Their systems are
complex and a lot can be done with them since ngptona web-based platform.
It allows for more opportunities with respect toeiraction using plan information,
with security a key consideration.

Mr. Griep questioned if Pension Resource Centerldvoaplace some work
currently being performed by Comerica with respéxtplanned financials,
checking account, and accounts payable. Mr. Baied that they can however
they do not have to. Typically Comerica would com to pay benefits unless
there is a reason not to such as a substantialseegtigs. He is unaware how
payment of benefits is wrapped into the custodigéement. Pension Resource
Center does have a similar procedure for revievajmgyoving invoice payments
and securely cutting checks or it can communicéie information to the
custodian who could then generate the checks. itherecase, it would be
desirable for Pension Resource Center to deal thgthmaintenance of the plan
financials. This would be slightly different. Therill start this on October®lon

a fiscal-type basis for the Fire Plan. The samelevd®e done for the General
Plan if hired to allow for continuity. Maintainintpe financials for the plan as
opposed to City staff will allow the City more im@l resources during a time
when staffing is limited.

Ms. Mazzio stated the proposal indicates that P@nResource Center will attend
six monthly meetings in one year and additionalrgba will be incurred for
added meetings. Fort Myers schedules monthly mgetiowever sometimes it is
not necessary to hold one; typically there areastl nine meetings per year. Mr.
Baur stated if monthly meetings are already beietd he will modify the
proposal to accommodate twelve meetings per yeairatude a couple of extra
at no charge. However he would charge if actintyreases and there is a need
for sixteen to eighteen meetings. Ms. Mazzio stdtat there would be times

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 6 of 16



when Pension Resource Center will be requiredtemdtCity Council meetings;
Mr. Baur acknowledged. Mr. Griep stated that thésurs once per year. Ms.
Lovejoy stated that the normal course of businesfdcbe handled by the trustees
if needed with respect to agenda items. She doiglsnow whether this would be
an administrator function; Mr. Griep agreed. Nlsvejoy stated that more
responsibility will be brought onto the trustees daytsourcing the administrator
function.

Ms. Mazzio stated on occasion members apply foakbdisy pension. She
guestioned if Pension Resource Center would hahéleelated work. Mr. Baur
stated that they would however Nora in Christian&ddehner’s office processes
most of the medical related information. It isadrll intensive process and she
does a great job. He may or may not have pullatdabt of the proposal. They
would not necessarily charge extra or differently & disability. Many of the
pension plans they work for use Christiansen & [2etbecause they are the only
office that process disabilities to that extentati@@ring the medical records for a
disability pension could be intense and time conegnparticularly in getting
responses from medical providers and others. Hhwetigrying to duplicate what
Christiansen & Dehner does. They would attend aegtings whether or not they
are disability hearings. If he had a charge fodiced records type requests in the
proposal it would not apply to the work performegl Mora in Christiansen &
Dehner’s office.

Mr. Griep questioned if Pension Resource Centerladvassist the trustees in
filing their State of Florida forms. Mr. Baur stdt¢hat both Pension Resource
Center and Christiansen & Dehner will remind thestees to ensure compliance.
Ms. Runkle stated that she provides an electronipaper copy of the form to
trustees and encourages them to get a filed stapyplecause the papers can get
lost. Mr. Baur stated that the disclosure formes lanief and do not require much
assistance. Pension Resource Center would fortis@rgbaperwork and remind
trustees to file their initial and final financidisclosure forms in addition to the
regular annual filing.

Mr. Griep questioned if Pension Resource Centdrfallbw up with members to
ensure that their beneficiary information is cutrerMs. Runkle stated that other
pension plans typically remind employees annudllge reminder email is sent to
all employees providing information on how to ascédse forms on the Pension
Resource Center website. Smaller pension plarfegé#teir employees together
to complete the forms. Mr. Baur stated that théso dring the forms to
workshops and remind employees to keep their indion updated.

He is attempting to persuade Scott Christiansesctept forms and applications
electronically because he believes ultimately thighat will occur in the future
and they have the capability to do it now. The twost sensitive forms are
beneficiary designations and DROP withdrawal. €hase the two situations
where a disgruntled family member or ex-spouse ngy to manipulate

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 7 of 16



information. There are however security measunesocedures in place. He
encourages the trustees to accept electronic gilswgh as applications, not as a
replacement for human interaction but as an adwitiavenue for communication
and interaction. Having the online accessibilityo@s members to gather
information at their own pace and once ready thag speak to an office
employee. The firm also offers video conferenciitghas not been used yet likely
because the current age demographic of thosengetis between 55 and 60
however he expects that its use will increase emiar future.

Mr. Baur and Ms. Runkle concluded their presentatiad were dismissed from
the meeting.

Mr. Lustig stated that the presentation was impvess Mr. Griep stated it was
very professional. He noticed that Mr. Baur reddrto the whole company in his
presentation where Ms. Kerr referred only to hérsbls. Mazzio stated that she
is concerned about Pension Resource Center's ddistGriep stated that the fee
is higher however the services are greater. Mr.tigustated that Pension
Resource Center has a lot more experience. Mr.al&yl stated he likes that the
company is local for employees. Ms. Carlson staked Mr. Baur is forward
thinking; he looks out for what is beneficial teetemployees and trustees. Mr.
O’Malley stated the fee is 5% higher than the ot#ministrators. He questioned
how the Fire Plan justifies paying the higher fédr. Griep stated they pay a lot
less because their pension plan is smaller.

Mr. Griep stated that he likes Pension ResourcaeCdrecause the firm has the
ability to take over Comerica’s responsibilities time future. They could be
paying all of the benefits. Mr. Baur's knowledge amazing. Mr. O’'Malley
guestioned if the Board desires to have one firmdleeverything or would it be
better to have different entities for a system loéaks and balances. Mr. Seagle
stated that Pension Resource Center sends thecEilmpartment invoices to be
paid to Fiduciary Trust for the firefighters and tate he has had a good
relationship with the firm. Mr. Griep stated he ftweathat Mr. Baur is
communicating with the Payroll Department and theg providing information
for the Fire Plan; the transition will be a lot stes with the General Plan. Mr.
Griep confirmed that Pension Resource Center haa b@rking with the Fire
Plan since July.

Ms. Lovejoy stated that there are many unknownaliee of the extra charges
such as the $100.00 setup fee and $50.00 for rgndifierent reports. She
guestioned the total cost. Mr. O’'Malley statedttharrently Foster & Foster
provides the reports. Mr. Griep stated that theelie process includes medical
records; this would not be an issue because Cinstn & Dehner performs that
work. He did want to ask about the setup fee &ireament disability. Ms.
Lovejoy stated she believes that the retirementdisdbility setup fee refers to
the actual dollar amount to be paid upon retiremnehich is currently provided
by Foster & Foster; Ms. Emerson agreed. Ms. Laystated that it may be the

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 8 of 16



same cost or it may not. Mr. Griep stated thatuitrently costs $100.00 for
employees to receive their retirement numbers aitid Rension Resource Center
they would be able to obtain this information oalin

Ms. Lovejoy questioned Pension Resource Centess tooprocess retirement or
disability applications and how many are requegkdyear. Ms. Emerson stated
that there are not many; this would be the $10€80 The number of employees
retiring is currently low because of the buyoutr. Kriep questioned the number
between active and retirees. Ms. Emerson statedtitie City has 560 active
employees and nearly 400 retirees.

Mr. Baur re-entered the meeting.

Mr. Griep requested clarification on the retiremdisiability application fee. Mr.
Baur stated that the $50.00 per medical requestdamt apply; this work is done
by Christiansen & Dehner's Office. The $100.00 castcharged when an
employee retires. It usually does not equatedalsstantial amount in years time
under ordinary circumstances. That would be falisability or retiree. They
tend to spend a lot of individual time with peopidile going through the
retirement process. When there is not much agfithie charge is separate rather
than built in entirely into the retainer, whichneore of an activity based fee. The
only time this has become substantial is when titg ¢ Cape Coral had a
buyout and approximately one-third of the staffQ Zizople, retired at once. He
had two people working and another on overtime ¢etmvith the members. The
fees basically covered their overhead. Fort Myeagy have one retiree per month
with 350 active members.

Ms. Pennington stated that Fort Myers’ has mora B&0 active members. Ms.
Emerson stated that it is approximately 560. MauBstated that he used Foster
& Foster’s valuation breakdown to obtain the nursbdte considered the DROP
members as retirees however there were only appsigly twenty. Ms.
Pennington stated perhaps the non-vested membees exeluded. Mr. Baur
agreed stating he could have excluded them. Rexsadlihe price is based upon
the overall number of members in the pension platabse their time
involvement is more reflected in the total numbgpeople and the interaction
with them. This is the starting point in determpnihe fee proposal. Adjustments
are then made for benefits, provisions, and otitgatsons that could arise.

Mr. Baur stated that the City currently maintaihe general ledger transactions.
Pension Resource Center would relatively be abtake over that function. It is
best to have one general ledger, which would bectiraebasis for the audit.
Pension Resource Center would need the trial baland chart of accounts as of
October ¥ to take over the maintenance. Mr. Seagle quesiich Pension
Resource Center would prepare the financial statsnelated to the pension for
the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial ReporAFR). Mr. Baur agreed
stating that Pension Resource Center’s audit eitidne the basis for the CAFR.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 9 of 16



His office would become a little more intensivetine process and work with the
City’s schedule to ensure that the pension infoitnaloes not delay completion
of the CAFR.

Mr. Baur exited the meeting.

Ms. Lovejoy questioned how outsourcing will impdlece employees. They are
accustomed to coming into a City office at any tifoeassistance. Ms. Mazzio
stated that Pension Resource Center has limitectshdr. Griep confirmed that
they are open until 2:30 p.m. Mr. O’Malley statibat their office is out of the
city limits. Ms. Lovejoy stated that it would likebe impossible for employees
with a 30 minute lunch hour to go their office. .MBriep questioned how often
Ms. Emerson is visited by the members. Ms. Emessaied that she is contacted
at least once per day either personally or by telap. Ms. Carlson stated that
members would have the online access; this istthrethat many are going. Mr.
Griep stated that many questions could be answanbde. Ms. Carlson stated
that Ms. Runkle indicated her schedule is flexibMr. Griep stated a workshop
could be held every month or quarter. Ms. Penoimgitated it could even be
held once per year to bring the members up to speédnswer questions.

Ms. Pennington stated that she likes Pension Resdlgnter. Mr. Baur was very
prepared. He was knowledgeable about the factdigndes except for the one
fact about the number of members. She would feefident with him as her plan
administrator personally and as a board member. Ldgejoy stated that the
Board was going to wait six months before makindgaision. Mr. Griep stated
that he is ready now to make a decision.

Mr. Griep motioned to hire Pension Resource Ceatethe Fort Myers General
Employees’ Pension Plan Administrator, secondedMyy O’Malley, motion
carried with a five to two vote, Ms. Mazzio and Masvejoy dissenting.

Ms. Emerson stated that she will inform Mr. Chasgsen. Ms. Mazzio questioned
if Mr. Baur is going to modify the proposal to inde all of the meetings. Ms.
Carlson responded that he said he would. Ms. Magiated that Mr. Baur said
the cost would be $4,075.00 instead of $4,37588e questioned if this will this
be the cost. Mr. Griep stated that he did not ligiar Ms. Carlson clarified that
the lower cost would be for a three year contrat ®r. Baur indicated this
would be the same as the two year guarantee. Wtid_stated that the fee is less
expensive and recommended that the Board requedBadir to honor the verbal
proposal. Mr. Griep stated that Mr. Baur indicaltedthought about reducing it to
$4075.00 with a 3% multiplier however the resultswihe same so he was not
going to do that. He did state however that he ldvaunodify the meeting
attendance to twelve per year.

Mr. Griep stated that his motion was to hire Pem$&@source Center at a fee of
$4,375.00 with twelve months of meeting attendapee year. Ms. Lovejoy

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 10 of 16



stated that this is not what she heard. Mr. Lustaged he heard it was less
expensive. Ms. Mazzio stated that he talked aliand never gave a definitive
answer about the fee. Ms. Lovejoy questioned how Baur knew he was
underbid. Mr. Griep stated he likely suspected Ms. Carlson stated that Mr.
Baur has been in business long enough to know. Pdanington questioned if
Fort Myers wants a two year or three year contrddt. Griep responded that a
two year contract is fine. Mr. Lustig stated thaywWr. Baur initially proposed it
verbally, Fort Myers was getting it cheaper, evlraper on the third year than
his original proposal.

Ms. Emerson confirmed that the Board would like fcott Christiansen to
contact Mr. Baur to finalize the contract and forsvat for approval. Ms.
Emerson questioned how the Board will notify thewbership about the change.
Mr. O’Malley recommended it be done through therBthypepartment.

Item 111 — Additional Business|

Addendum to Florida State Statute 1128

Ms. Lovejoy questioned if an employee currently A& hours on the books,
would it be included in his/her benefit calculatidfs. Emerson agreed stating the
provisions in the addendum will impact benefitsoighe effective date. Ms.
Lovejoy questioned if this requirement must be aethdéo. Ms. Lovejoy read
from Scott Christiansen’s memorandum, “The State faw indicated that it is
permissible but not mandatory to set the amoursiak or annual leave accrued
on the effective date as the maximum amount.” Shted that the other option
would be to use up some of the sick or vacatiore tand it would be the lesser
amount. This does not make sense because emplagees every hour. Ms.
Emerson stated that there would have to be a window

Ms. Lovejoy stated if she has 160 hours now anédako weeks off in three
months, the balance would decrease to 120 howgypeoximately 20 more hours
would have accrued over that time. She questidnde@ amount of hours would
decrease to 120 from 160 after the vacation timeaken. Ms. Emerson stated
that it would because it was used after the effectiate. Mr. Lustig stated that
employees can use and accrue time however theyatilget any more than that
amount after the effective date. Mr. Griep stateat employees will be paid out
whatever they accrue however it will not be incldide their pension calculation.
Mr. Lustig stated that the cap is being placeddoy hours accrued as of the
effective date. This amount will vary per employeds. Pennington confirmed
that this is for benefit calculation purposes onMr. Lustig stated that employees
get nothing toward their benefit at retirementiéy use all of their accrued time.

Ms. Carlson stated if an employee has 100 hoursf éise contract ratification,
that 100 hours is calculated and used toward thsipe benefit calculation; it is
still the employee’s to use. Mr. Griep agreedistathis is the employee’s cap.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 11 of 16



Ms. Mazzio stated if employees have 100 hours asoaofract ratification they
will keep the time however if used after that dduwey will lose it as time counted
toward the benefit calculation at retirement. Mfwvejoy stated the only
difference is that employees cannot continue tddbwp their vacation and sick
accrual balances past the cap amount for pensiogfibealculation purposes.

Replacement Candidates for Atalanta Sosnoff

Ms. Emerson stated per the Board’'s request, Bogdahs made its
recommendation for three candidates to be considerereplacement of Large
Cap Growth Manager Atalanta Sosnoff. Board membese provided with
background information on five managers as wellaasnemorandum dated
October 19, 2011, with Bogdahn's recommendation irtterview Brown,
Winslow, and Wells Heritage. Ms. Emerson requeshed the board members
inform her by email which three candidates theyirdeto interview at the
November meeting. Ms. Lovejoy stated that the Baganeviously interviewed
Winslow and Brown. She believes that Wells Heegtag new. Ms. Mazzio
stated that she will go with Bogdahn’s recommermtetboard members agreed.

Ms. Lovejoy motioned to interview Large Cap Growktanagers Brown,
Winslow, and Wells Heritage as recommended by Bugdaeconded by Mr.
Griep, and unanimously approved by the Board.

Ms. Emerson stated that she will inform Mr. Nasls¢bedule the interviews for
the November meeting.

Ms. Emerson confirmed that the plan administratdr lve coordinator for all of
the providers. Ms. Mazzio stated that she is unootable with this. She believes
that an outsourced administrator will not be ablg@tovide the same services as
Ms. Emerson has as an employee; it has been cablfenvith the way it is and
she believes it will be a lot different. The Boavdl have to coordinate with City
Council; the trustees have never done this befdfs. Lovejoy stated that she is
leery about how the meetings will be run; howevss kas to give it a chance.
Another issue is that outsourcing will involve atdad cost that has not existed,;
Ms. Mazzio agreed.

Ms. Emerson stated that the General Plan has af lidiosyncrasies; she hopes
that Pension Resource Center can work through thepecially with the retirees.
She has retirees come in frequently; they just watdalk. A lot of people change
their banks frequently as well. The Board is unaair some issues that occur.
Hopefully Pension Resource Center is aware of tigssees and can handle them.
Ms. Emerson stated that she will work with Mr. Baumd Ms. Runkle to transfer
the physical pension files to their office. Mr.i€yr stated that Pension Resource
Center has to be designated as the Records Managémeon. Ms. Emerson
stated that Scott Christiansen will have to preplaegpaperwork. Ms. Pennington
stated that it has been this way for a long ting r@ow it is time for a change.

City Council Discussion to Add City Manager as ¥gtPension Board Member

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 12 of 16



Ms. Lovejoy stated that the ordinance change remge® add the City Manager
or his designee as a voting pension board membsgmwstponed for the Police
and Fire Plans however it was approved for adwartent for the General Plan.
She questioned why it would go to advertisemerthéire was no change other
than City Council appointing the City Manager tib & vacant seat. In addition,
she sees no vacant seat. Ms. Carlson stated maybasito go through
negotiations. Ms. Lovejoy responded that it hats Ms. Emerson stated she was
not there and/or involved in the issue. Ms. Loyejtated that Article 12 of the
Employees’ Association Contract states that anyngbato the General
Employees’ Pension Ordinance has to be approvatidinion. As a result, the
trustees should attend the meeting where City Abwilk discuss proceeding
with the change to inform them that it is a viadatiof the contract. Ms. Emerson
recommended that the Board send a letter to theManhager.

Ms. Lovejoy stated that the Board previously retges pension plan
enhancements and were told by the City Manageraib umtil the union changes
were presented to City Council. She believes tatBoard should address this
because the changes were not entertained withetteatr ordinance request. Ms.
Pennington stated that one of the changes allowethlbrars to buy time if
terminated. Ms. Emerson stated that the Board hidied the responsibility for
implementing benefits to the Union. Mr. Griep sthtthat the union contract
shifted it; the Board never had that responsibilfds. Emerson stated that the
Board assumed that responsibility at one point eweow it does not. Mr.
Griep stated Scott Christiansen informed the Botrdt it never had the
responsibility to improve benefits. Ms. Emersoate that it was always done
through the Board. Ms. Pennington stated thaptbgision was included in the
contract only two years ago. Ms. Lovejoy stateat $he believes no one cares
about the change; Ms. Pennington responded thatcsse

Ms. Lovejoy stated there was discussion about teae@l Board having two
vacant seats. Ms. Emerson stated Marie Adams ridisated that only Ms.
Mazzio’s seat is vacant. Mr. Lustig’'s term has goncluded. Ms. Lovejoy
guestioned why the ordinance language would habe tthanged if City Council
is appointing the City Manager as its represergatiVhe reason they decided to
move forward with the General Plan is because GAdlety did not commit to
stating whether they could or could not. He diatestthat there were two City
Council appointees on the General Board, whichfferént from Police and Fire
because they specifically have the Mayor on theartis. The General Plan was
different therefore they could have appointed tlity ®lanager however instead
they chose to change the ordinance in which casg &ne in breach of their
contract with the Union. Mr. Griep stated thatcsirthey chose to advertise a
change in the ordinance, Mr. O’Malley can infornerth that if they proceed it
will be a breach of contract.

Ms. Lovejoy stated Mr. Christiansen informed theaBbthat Ms. Mazzio could
remain in her position until a replacement is apfedl. She believes that the City

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 13 of 16



Manager will not attend himself; he likely will apipt a designee. The meetings
have always been open to anyone who would likatend; the Board would be
happy to have them. Ms. Emerson recommended tleétea be drafted informing
the City that they will be in violation of the coatt should they proceed.

Bogdahn Group’s Response to Morgan Stanley Smithega Report

Ms. Pennington questioned if the Board still desifer copies of Bogdahn's
response to be sent to the Mayor’s Office, City Bgar, and City Council as
indicated in the September 21, 2011 meeting minyiage fifteen, paragraph
five. Ms. Mazzio agreed stating they need to beereavare that the information
provided by Morgan Stanley Smith Barney is inactairdls. Emerson confirmed
that she has yet to send the report.

Employee Request to Increase Individual Contribuiate

Ms. Carlson stated that several employees havetigned if they can increase
their contributions individually to 6%, 7% or 8%lhe goal is to increase their
benefit at retirement because they know the moré pdo pension, the more
favorable the benefit. Ms. Emerson stated thisrug in the long term. Ms.
Lovejoy stated that the pension rules would havehange to allow it. Ms.
Emerson stated that a provision exists; the Unammmresent items related to the
pension plan.

Ms. Emerson stated that the City and Union have lbéscussing pension reform.
Currently the pension plan has four tiers and iy to@ increased to eight to allow
for the new changes. Ms. Pennington stated thatCity wants to lower the
multiplier to 1.6% therefore in order to increasback to 3.0% the members must
have the choice, which will be provided by the elifint tier options. Mr.
O’Malley stated that not everyone is going to halke same multiplier; Ms.
Emerson agreed stating the members will have thieropo contribute more for
the enhanced benefits.

Ms. Emerson confirmed that Tier 1, Tier 2, Tiem@i&ier 4 currently provide for
a: 3.0% multiplier, $200.00 supplement, 2.5% COL#nd combination of
$200.00 and 2.5% COLA respectively. Ms. Lovejoestioned if the City will
have to open the tiers, as the elections weretedm irrevocable. Ms. Emerson
stated that they will have to be opened; everyoilehave the opportunity to
change their tier. Members can also change eVeegtyears when the tiers are
re-evaluated. Ms. Lovejoy questioned if a membeuld be able to wait until
three years prior to retirement to move into thghbr tier. Ms. Emerson
responded that it is not retroactive. The emplayeeld only contribute for three
years and the actuary would calculate the costdeive that benefit for the rest of
the retiree’s life. Mr. Lustig stated members euntly pay a set percentage.
Foster & Foster can calculate it and the employeeldv have to pay more
however right now the pension plan is not set ugHis.

Ms. Emerson stated that Patrick Donlan provide@éxample. Two members are

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 14 of 16



in the pension plan with one contributing 10% ahneé other 7%. The member
paying 10% is not truly paying the full 10% becaiiss offset depending on the
number of members and length of time in the tidirthe person contributing 7%
leaves that tier, the full 10% will become the @sgbility of the one remaining.
Ms. Mazzio stated that this is why the member eastwere irrevocable because
they believed it would become a problem. Ms. Emeragreed stating however
that there is no choice based on the recent changes

Ms. Lovejoy questioned why the tiers must be opeeeery three years. Ms.
Emerson responded that the Union made this requdsiv hires employed after
contract ratification will remain at a 1.6% multgal;, they will not have the option
of contributing toward the 3%. In addition, thasmployed as of the effective
date will have the option to make a higher contitoutoward the 3.0% at a later
date. This will not be retroactive; the 3.0% npllar will count only toward the

years that the member contributed.

Mr. Lustig questioned why the option to contribtdevard a 3.0% multiplier will
not be offered to new hires. Ms. Emerson stateat the City made this
stipulation to reduce costs. Mr. Lustig respontiet the cost is the member’s
responsibility. Ms. Emerson stated that some tilteabsorbed by the employer;
the City is incurring less of a savings by allowitlge current members to
contribute more. Mr. O’Malley stated that he resjed the additional tiers and
ability to opt into the tiers every three yearshisTwill help employees build
toward their future as a result of the City’s dimshanges to the pension plan.
Without these options employees who are still wagkin the next 20 years will
endure a 31% decrease in their pension benefit.

Mr. Lustig questioned if this passes, will the amiobe re-calculated when the
three-year window is opened; Ms. Emerson statedttiaeuld. Mr. Lustig stated
if members join the tier three years prior to estent, it will reduce the
calculation for everyone in the tier. Ms. Lovejoyegtioned what would be the
financial benefit for members to be in the tierating. Even if the member pays
a higher percentage in the last three years stilldess than paying for ten years.
She believes this should be re-evaluated.

Ms. Carlson stated originally the tiers were irreafole because it was recognized
that those who have been in the tier from the beggqwould endure the burden.
She questioned what will happen to those in thesting tiers. Mr. Lustig
responded that they will pay more over time. ¥b0rop out, the remaining 50%
will have to pay the difference. Ms. Lovejoy statbdt members who have the
option to enter into the tier three years befoteement will receive the benefits
but only pay for three years. Ms. Carlson stated she entered into the tier for
the three years, went into the DROP, and has alressmbvered the cost because
she knew the timeframe for her age and going inrDXR©P. If employees know
that they have ten years to work until they aretB2y will opt into a tier three
years prior. At age 62 they can enter into the PR@d reap all of the benefits

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 15 of 16



unless they stagger it and calculate based on theert tier. Ms. Emerson
responded that they have to. Ms. Mazzio statedghatunderstands changing it
however she believes it should be a one-time icable option. Ms. Carlson
stated that it could become a significant admiatste issue.

Mr. Lustig stated that the Board would have to e=ja cost analysis from Foster
& Foster regarding Ms. Carlson’s question about legges increasing their

contribution. This is similar to investing more m deferred compensation
account. Itis the employee’s money and wouldafigct the City. Ms. Emerson

stated that the only avenue to do this would beutn the tiers. Employees
could not automatically contribute more. Ms. Canlstated that she talked about
the 457 Plan to the employees however they reqiiéisée she bring the issue to
the Board. Ms. Emerson stated that employees tttdrbabout the City investing

their dollars rather than them doing it as an irilial.

Ms. Pennington stated that another issue beingtiaéed is the definition of
salary to include base pay, not W-2 wages. Cadeteenefit and seniority
bonuses would not be included. The Board foughttfis benefit five to six years
ago. Ms. Lovejoy questioned if this is a resultlué change in legislation. Ms.
Emerson responded, not the base pay. Mr. Grigpdsthat this definition will

affect the pension calculation; Board members abrdds. Lovejoy questioned
how much savings this generates and should it beopuard the 10% reduction in
salary. This was clearly pointed out in the Cigu@cil pension workshop.

Ms. Pennington stated that she added the requéswim employees the
opportunity to buy airtime within 30 days of termiron to Mr. O’'Malley’s
negotiation items. Ms. Mazzio questioned if ovedimould be included in the
pension calculation. Ms. Pennington stated thgbleyees can have up to 300
overtime hours included. Ms. Mazzio questioneduabeacation pay. Ms.
Emerson stated that only the capped hours wouldnbeided for sick and
vacation time. Ms. Emerson stated that overtinagess spread out. It equates to
approximately $1.2 million. Ms. Emerson stated that many exceed 300 hours
however some employees do in the Water/Wastewadpai@ments.

There being no other business to discuss, the ngeatjourned at 11:10'clock
A.M.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites October 19, 2011 Page 16 of 16



